

March 21, 2014 Via Overnight Delivery

RECEIVED

MAR 2 4 2014

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Mr. Brent Kirtley, Tariff Branch Manager Kentucky Public Service Commission 211 Sower Boulevard Frankfort, KY 40602-0615

RE: Insight Phone of Kentucky, LLC d/b/a Insight Phone

Utility ID: 5053040 and 22205304

Cancellation of Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity and Tariffs

Dear Mr. Kirtley:

The original and three (3) copies of this letter is submitted on behalf of Insight Phone of Kentucky, LLC. d/b/a Insight Phone ("Company") to request cancellation of the Company's Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity to provide local and interexchange services within the state of Kentucky and cancellation of Kentucky P.S.C. Tariff No. 1 (Local Exchange) and Kentucky P.S.C. Tariff No. 2 (Access). The Company does not have any customers and, therefore, no customer notice is required and respectfully requests the earliest possible effective date for this filing.

The Company understands that it still retains responsibility for any Kentucky reporting obligations that remain outstanding.

Please acknowledge receipt of this filing by date-stamping the extra copy of this cover letter and returning it to me in the self-addressed, stamped envelope provided for that purpose.

Any questions you may have regarding this filing should be directed to my attention at 407-740-3006 or via email to croesel@tminc.com. Thank you for your assistance in this matter.

Sincerely,

Carey Roesel

Consultant to Insight Phone of Kentucky, LLC d/b/a Insight Phone

cc: Vincent Paladini - Insight - Kentucky

file: Insight - Kentucky - Local

Insight - Kentucky - Access

tms: KYa1401

Enclosures CR/sp

KENTUCKY
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

JEFF R. DEROUEN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TARIFF BRANCH

EFFECTIVE

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF NO. 2
TITLE PAGE
Original Page 1

REGULATIONS AND RATES APPLICABLE TO THE FURNISHING OF

ACCESS SERVICE

PROVIDED BY

INSIGHT PHONE OF KENTUCKY, LLC D/B/A INSIGHT PHONE

FOR CONNECTION TO COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES
WITHIN THE COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Executive Director

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal

ACCESS SERVICE

INSIGHT PHONE OF KENTUCKY, LLC

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF No. 2 **TABLE OF CONTENTS** Original Page 1

TARLE OF CONTENTS

PACE OF CONTENTS	e No
SECTION 1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF	
General	1
TARIFF REVISION SYMBOLS	1
DEFINITIONS	2
EXPLANATION OF ABBREVIATIONS	5

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Lega Affi

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

INSIGHT PHONE OF KENTUCKY, LLC

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF No. 2 TABLE OF CONTENTS 1st Revised Original Page 2 Cancels Original Page 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE NO.

SECTION 2.	GENERAL	REGUL	ATIONS
------------	---------	-------	--------

2.1.	UNDERTAL 2.1.1. 2.1.2. 2.1.3. 2.1.4. 2.1.5.	Scope	1 3
2.2.	OBLIGATIO 2.2.1. 2.2.2. 2.2.3. 2.2.4. 2.2.5. 2.2.6.	Customer Premises Provisions Liability of the Customer Jurisdictional Reporting Requirements Identification and Rating of VoIP-PSTN Traffic Changes in Service Requested Notice to Company for Cancellation of Service	5 5 5 6 9.1 10
2.3.	CUSTOMEI 2.3.1.	R EQUIPMENT AND CHANNELS	11 11
2.4.		RATING AND BILLING OF ACCESS SERVICES WHERE MORE EXCHANGE COMPANY IS INVOLVED	12
2.5.	ALLOWAN 2.5.1. 2.5.2. 2.5.3. 2.5.4.	CE FOR INTERRUPTIONS IN SERVICE General Limitations on Allowances Use of Another Means of Communications Application of Credits for Interruptions in Service	14
2.6.	PRIVACY I	Rules	15
2.7.	APPLICATE 2.7.1. 2.7.2. 2.7.3.	Measuring Access Minutes	17

KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

JEFF R. DEROUEN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TARIFF BRANCH

Issued: December 27, 2011

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affairs, New York, New

Effect

12/29/2011

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAG	GE No.
		SECTION 2. GENERAL REGULATIONS (CONT'D)	
2.8.	Access	Service Order	19
	2.8.1.	Ordering Requirements	19
	2.8.2.	Access Service Order Intervals	20
	2.8.3.	Access Service Order Modifications	22
	2.8.4.	Cancellation of an Access Order	
	2.8.5.	Minimum Period	26
	2.8.6.	Minimum Period Charge	26
2.9.	BILLING	AND PAYMENT	27
	2.9.1.	Taxes	27
	2.9.2.	Claims and Disputes	28
	2.9.3.	Payment of Deposits	
2.10.	SPECIAL	Construction	30

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

3.2.1.

3.2.2.

3.2.3.

3.3.1.

3.3.2.

3.3.3.

3.3.4.

3.4.1.

3.4.2.

3.4.3.

3.4.4.

3.4.5.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3

3.4.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE NO. SECTION 3. SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE GENERAL 1 PROVISION AND DESCRIPTION..... 1 1 Feature Group B..... Feature Group D..... 1 8XX Toll-Free Access Service 1 2 SWITCHED ACCESS RATE CATEGORIES..... Carrier Common Line..... Switched Transport 6 Local Switching 8XX Toll Free Access..... 6 SWITCHED ACCESS RATES AND CHARGES Service Implementation

Carrier Common Line.....

Switched Transport Local Switching

8XX Toll-Free Access

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

7

7

9

9

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

Executive Director

KY04-002

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF NO. 2 **TABLE OF CONTENTS** Original Page 5

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE NO.

SECTION 4. RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Lega Aff

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

ACCESS SERVICE

SPECIAL ASSEMBLIES AND INDIVIDUAL CASE BASIS ARRANGEMENTS

RATES AND CHARGES

INSIGHT PHONE OF KENTUCKY, LLC

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF NO. 2 TABLE OF CONTENTS Original Page 6

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE
1/10/2005
PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

Executive Director

KY04-002

ACCESS SERVICE

INSIGHT PHONE OF KENTUCKY, LLC

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF No. 2
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Original Page 7

		TABLE OF CONTENTS <u>Pac</u>	ge No
		SECTION 6. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE ARRANGEMENTS	
5.1.	Non-Em	nergency N11 DIALING SERVICE	1
		Provision of Service	1
	6.1.2.		4
	to I i	Rates and Charges	4

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

12/19/2006

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

Effective: December 19, 2006

Issued: December 4, 2006

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal A fairs

1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF

1.1. GENERAL

This tariff applies to intrastate Access Service supplied to customers for origination and termination of traffic to and from Central Office codes assigned to the Company.

The provision of Access Service is subject to existing regulations and terms and conditions specified in this Tariff as well as in the Company's other current Tariffs, and may be revised, added to, or supplemented by superseding issues.

In addition to the regulations and charges herein, this Tariff is subject to specific regulations as may be prescribed by the Public Service Commission of Kentucky.

1.2. **TARIFF REVISION SYMBOLS**

Revisions to this Tariff are coded through the use of symbols. These symbols appear in the right hand margin of the page. The symbols and their meanings are as follows:

- (C) Change in regulation
- (D) Discontinued rate, regulation or text
- (I) Increase in rate
- (M) Text relocated from one page to another
- (N) New rate, regulation or text
- (R) Reduction in rate
- (T) Change in text

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE** 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affi

Executive Director

1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF

1.3. **DEFINITIONS**

Access Code

A uniform code assigned by the Company to an individual customer. The code has the form 10XXX, 10XXXXXX, 950-0XXX, or 950-1XXX.

Access Minutes

The usage of exchange facilities in intrastate service for the purpose of calculating chargeable usage.

Access Tandem

A switching system that provides a traffic concentration and distribution function for originating or terminating traffic between end offices and a customer's premises.

Answer Supervision

The transmission of the switch trunk equipment supervisory signal (off-hook or on-hook) to the customer's point of termination as an indication that the called party has answered or disconnected.

Call

A customer attempt for which the complete address code is provided to the service end office.

Carrier or Common Carrier

Any individual, partnership, association, corporation or other entity engaged in intrastate communication for hire by wire or radio between two or more exchanges.

Central Office

A local Company switching system where exchange service customer station loops are terminated for purposes of interconnection to each other and to trunks.

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa:

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

500

1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF

1.3. **DEFINITIONS (CONT'D)**

Channel

A communications path between two or more points of termination.

Communications System

Denotes channels and other facilities which are capable of communications between terminal equipment provided by other than the Company.

Company

Whenever used in this Tariff, "Company" or "Insight Phone" refers to Insight Phone of Kentucky, LLC, d/b/a Insight Phone, unless otherwise specified or clearly indicated by the context.

Customer

The person or legal entity that subscribes to service under this Tariff and is responsible for payment of tariffed charges for services furnished to the customer.

Customer Premises

The customer premises is all space in the same building occupied by a customer and all space occupied by the same customer in different buildings on contiguous property.

End Office Switch

A Company switching system where exchange service customer station loops are terminated for purposes of interconnection to each other and to trunks.

End User

Any customer of an intrastate telecommunications service that is not a Carrier or Common Carrier, except that a Carrier shall be deemed to be an End User when such Carrier uses a telecommunications service for administrative purposes. A person or entity that offers telecommunications service exclusively as a reseller shall be deemed to be an End User if all resale transmissions offered by such reseller originate on the premises of such reseller when making such service

available to others, directly or indirectly.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF

1.3. **DEFINITIONS (CONT'D)**

Exchange

A group of lines in a unit generally smaller than a LATA established by the Company for the administration of communications service in a specified area. An Exchange may consist of one or more central offices together with the associated facilities used in furnishing communications service within that area.

Facilities

Denotes any cable, poles, conduit, carrier equipment, wire center distribution frames, central office switching equipment, etc., utilized to provide the service offered under this Tariff.

Local Access and Transport Area (LATA)

A geographic area established for the provision and administration of communications service. It encompasses one or more designated exchanges, which are grouped to serve common social, economic and other purposes.

Local Calling Area

A geographical area, as defined in the Company's local or general exchange service Tariff in which an End User may complete a call without incurring toll usage charges.

Message

A Message is a Call as defined above.

Point of Termination

The point of demarcation within a customer-designated premises at which the Company's responsibility for the provision of access service ends. The point of demarcation is the point of interconnection between Company communications facilities and customer-provided facilities as defined in Part 68 of the Federal Communications Commission's Rules and Regulations.

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affi

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

By

1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF

1.3. **DEFINITIONS (CONT'D)**

"Public Service Commission" or "Commission"

The Public Service Commission of Kentucky.

Serving Wire Center

The wire center from which the customer-designated premises normally obtains dial tone from the Company.

Trunk

A communications path connecting two switching systems in a network, used in the establishment of an end-to-end connection.

Trunk Group

A set of trunks which are traffic engineered as a unit for the establishment of connections between switching systems in which all of the communications paths are interchangeable.

Wire Center

A physical location in which one or more central offices, used for the provision of exchange services, are located.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF

1.4. EXPLANATION OF ABBREVIATIONS

ANI - Automatic Number Identification

BHMC - Busy Hour Minutes of Capacity

BP - Billing Percentage

CCSA - Common Channel Signaling Access

DTT - Direct-Trunked Transport

EF - Entrance Facility

FCC - Federal Communications Commission

FGB - Feature Group B FGD - Feature Group D

IC - Interexchange Carrier ICB - Individual Case Basis

Mbps - Megabits per second MOU - Minutes of Use

LATA - Local Access and Transport Area

NECA - National Exchange Carrier Association

NPA - Numbering Plan Area

PIC - Primary Interexchange Carrier PIU - Percentage of Interstate Usage

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.1. UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY

2.1.1. SCOPE

The Company undertakes to furnish Switched Access Service in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Tariff.

2.1.2. SHORTAGE OF FACILITIES

All service is subject to the availability of suitable facilities. The Company reserves the right to limit the length of communications or to discontinue furnishing services when necessary because of the lack of transmission medium capacity or because of any causes beyond its control.

2.1.3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- A. Service is provided on the basis of a minimum period of three months for Switched Access. For the purpose of computing charges in this tariff, a month is considered to have 30 days.
- B. Customers may be required to enter into written service orders which shall contain or reference a specific description of the service ordered, the rates to be charged. the duration of the services, and the terms and conditions in this Tariff. Customers will also be required to execute any other documents as may be reasonably requested by the Company.
- C. In any action between the parties to enforce any provision of this Tariff, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its legal fees and court costs from the non-prevailing party in addition to other relief a court may award.
- D. The Company shall comply with all rules and regulations issued by the Kentucky Public Service Commission. In addition, the Regulations set forth herein apply to all services offered throughout this Tariff unless otherwise specified in the service specific section of this Tariff.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

Executive Director

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.1. UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

2.1.3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONT'D)

E. Assignment or Transfer

All service provided under this Tariff is controlled by the Company and the customer may not transfer or assign the use of service without the express prior written consent of the Company. Such transfer or assignment only shall apply where there is no interruption of the use or location of service. All terms and conditions shall apply to all such permitted transferees or assignees, as well as all conditions of service.

F. Use of Service

The services the Company offers shall not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any use for which the customer has not obtained all required governmental approvals, authorization, licenses, consents and permits.

The Company may require applicants for service who intend to use the Company's offering for resale and/or for shared use to file a letter with the Company confirming that their use of the Company's offerings complies with relevant laws and regulations, policies, orders and decisions.

The Company may require a customer to immediately shut down its transmission if such transmission is causing interference to others.

A customer, joint user, or authorized user may not assign, or transfer in any manner, the service or any rights associated with the service without the express prior written consent of the Company. The Company will only permit a customer to transfer its existing service to another entity if the existing customer has paid all charges owed to the Company for regulated access services. All terms and conditions shall apply to all such permitted transferees or assignees, as well as all conditions of service.

Recording of telephone conversations of service provided by the Company is prohibited except as authorized by applicable federal, state and local laws.

G. Ownership of Facilities

Issued: December 10, 2004

The customer obtains no property right or interest in the use of any specific type of facility, service, equipment, number, process, or code publices to such items remain, at all times, solely with the Company.

OF KENTUCKY

any. OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.1. UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

2.1.4. Provision of Equipment and Facilities

- A. Except as otherwise indicated, customer-provided equipment at the customer's premises for use in conjunction with the Company's Switched Access services shall be so constructed, maintained and operated as to work satisfactorily with the facilities of the Company.
- B. The Company shall not be responsible for the installation, operation or maintenance of any customer-provided communications equipment. Where such equipment is deployed in connection with Access Service furnished pursuant to this Tariff, the responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing of Access Service under this Tariff and to the maintenance and operation of such service in the proper manner. Subject to this responsibility, the Company shall not be responsible for:
 - 1. The through transmission of signals generated by customer-provided equipment or for the quality of, or defects in, such transmission; or
 - 2. The reception of signals by customer-provided equipment; or
 - 3. Network control signaling where such signaling is performed by customerprovided network control signaling equipment.
- C. With regard to customer-provided equipment used in connection with Access Service furnished under this Tariff, the Company reserves the right to prohibit the customer from using such equipment which is not registered by the Federal Communications Commission pursuant to Part 68 of Title 47, Code of Federal Regulations.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.1. Undertaking of the Company (Cont'd)

2.1.5. LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY

The liability of the Company for damages of any nature arising from errors, mistakes, omissions, interruptions, or delays of the Company, its agents, servants, or employees, in the course of establishing, furnishing, rearranging, moving, terminating, or changing the service or facilities or equipment shall not exceed an amount equal to the charges applicable under this Tariff (calculated on a proportionate basis where appropriate) to the period during which such error, mistake, omission, interruption or delay occurs.

In no event shall the Company be liable for any incidental, indirect, special, or consequential damages (including lost revenue or profits) of any kind whatsoever regardless of the cause or foreseeability thereof.

When the services or facilities of other common carriers are used separately or in conjunction with the Company's facilities or equipment in establishing connection to points not reached by the Company's facilities or equipment, the Company shall not be liable for any act or omission of such other common carriers or their agents, servants or employees.

The Company shall not be liable for any failure of performance hereunder if such failure is due to any cause or causes beyond the reasonable control of the Company. Such causes shall include, without limitation, acts of God, fire, explosion, vandalism, cable cut, storm or other similar occurrence, any law, order, regulation, direction, action or request of the United States Government or of any other government or of any civil or military authority, national emergencies, insurrections, riots, wars, strikes, lockouts or work stoppages or other labor difficulties, supplier failures, shortages, breaches or delays, or preemption of existing service to restore service in compliance with the Commission's Rules and Regulations.

The Company shall not be liable for interruptions, delays, errors, or defects in transmission, or for any injury whatsoever, caused by the customer, or the customer's agents, end users, or customers, or by facilities or equipment provided by the customer.

The Company makes no warranties or representations, express or implied either in fact or by operation of law, statutory or otherwise, including warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular use, except those

expressly set forth herein.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY

EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal

Executive Director

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.1. UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

2.1.6. DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE FOR CAUSE

- A. Upon nonpayment of any amounts owing to the Company, the Company may, by giving 30 days prior written notice to the customer, discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liability.
- B. Upon violation of any of the other material terms or conditions for furnishing service the Company may, by giving 30 days prior notice in writing to the customer, discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liability if such violation continues during that period.
- C. Upon condemnation of any material portion of the facilities used by the Company to provide service to a customer or if a casualty renders all or any material portion of such facilities inoperable beyond feasible repair, the Company, by notice to the customer, may discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liability.
- D. Upon the customer's insolvency, assignment for the benefit of creditors, filing for bankruptcy or reorganization, or failing to discharge an involuntary petition within the time permitted by law, the Company may immediately discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liability.
- E. Upon any governmental prohibition or required alteration of the services to be provided or any violation of an applicable law or regulation, the Company may immediately discontinue service without incurring any liability.
- F. In the event of fraudulent use of the Company's network, the Company may without notice suspend or discontinue service. The customer will be liable for all related costs. The customer will also be responsible for payment of any reconnection charges.
- G. Upon the Company's discontinuance of service to the customer under 2.1.6.A. or 2.1.6.B., the Company, in addition to all other remedies that may be available to the Company at law or in equity or under any other provision of this Tariff, may declare all future monthly and other charges which would have been payable by the customer during the remainder of the term for which such services would have otherwise been provided to the customer to be immediately due and payable.

(N)

(N)

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 4/1/2009

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

ESECTION 9:(1) 2009

Issued: March 16, 2009

Gregory Cameron, Vice President - Telecommunications Legal A

Secutive Directo

KY09-001

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.2. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CUSTOMER

2.2.1. CUSTOMER PREMISES PROVISIONS

- A. The customer shall provide the personnel, power and space required to operate all facilities and associated equipment installed on the premises of the customer.
- B. The customer shall be responsible for providing Company personnel access to premises of the customer at any reasonable hour for the purpose of testing the facilities or equipment of the Company.

2.2.2. LIABILITY OF THE CUSTOMER

- A. The customer will be liable for damages to the facilities of the Company and for all incidental and consequential damages caused by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the customer, its officers, employees, agents, invitees, or contractors where such acts or omissions are not the direct result of the Company's negligence or intentional misconduct.
- B. To the extent caused by any negligent or intentional act of the customer as described in A., preceding, the customer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company from and against all claims, actions, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, for (1) any loss, destruction or damage to property of any third party, (2) the death of or injury to persons, including, but not limited to, employees or invitees of either party, and (3) any liability incurred by the Company to any third party pursuant to this or any other price list or tariff of the Company, or otherwise, for any interruption of, interference to, or other defect in any service provided by the Company to such third party.
- C. The customer shall not assert any claim against any other customer or user of the Company's services for damages resulting in whole or in part from or arising in connection with the furnishing of service under this Tariff including but not limited to mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors or other defects or misrepresentations, whether or not such other customer or user contributed in any way to the occurrence of the damages, unless such damages were caused solely by the negligent or intentional act or omission of the other customer or user and not by any act or omission of the Company. Nothing in this Tariff is intended either to limit or to expand customer's right to assert any claims against third parties for damages of any nature other than those described in the preceding sentence.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.2. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CUSTOMER (CONT'D)

2.2.3. JURISDICTIONAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

- A. For Feature Group B Switched Access Service(s) for both originating and terminating usage, a projected Percentage of Interstate Usage (PIU) must be provided by the customer to the Company. When a customer orders Feature Group B Switched Access Service, the customer shall state, in its order, the projected PIU factor for each Feature Group B Switched Access Service group ordered. The formula for developing PIU is as follows in C., following.
- B. For Feature Group D Switched Access Service(s), the Company, where jurisdiction can be determined from call detail, will determine the PIU as follows:
 - 1. For originating access minutes, the PIU will be developed on a monthly basis, by end office trunk group, by dividing the measured interstate originating access minutes (the access minutes where the calling number is in one state and the called number is in another state) by the total originating access minutes.
 - 2. For terminating access minutes, the customer has the option to provide the Company with a projected PIU factor. Customers who provide a PIU factor shall supply the Company with an interstate percentage of the Feature Group D terminating access minutes for each account to which the customer may terminate traffic. Should the customer not supply a terminating PIU factor, the data used by the Company to develop the PIU for originating access minutes will be used to develop the PIU for such terminating access minutes.

When a customer orders Feature Group D Switched Access Service, the customer shall supply a projected PIU for each end office trunk group involved to be used in the event that originating call detail is insufficient to determine the jurisdiction of the usage. For purposes of developing the PIU, the customer shall utilize the same considerations as those set forth in C., following.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

3

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.2. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CUSTOMER (CONT'D)

2.2.3. JURISDICTIONAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS (CONT'D)

- C. Where the call detail data is insufficient to develop jurisdiction, the customer must provide the Company with a PIU using the following steps:
 - 1. For purposes of developing the PIU, the customer shall consider every call that enters the customer's network at a point within the same state as the state where the called station is located to be intrastate and every call that enters the customer's network at a point in a state different from the state in which the called station is located to be interstate.
 - 2. The Company will designate the number obtained by subtracting the PIU from 100 (100 projected interstate percentage = intrastate percentage) as the projected intrastate percentage of use.
 - 3. A whole number percentage will be used by the Company to apportion the usage, monthly recurring, and/or nonrecurring charges between interstate and intrastate until a revised report is received.
- D. The projected interstate percentage of use will be used to determine the charges as follows:

The number of access minutes for a trunk group will be multiplied by the projected interstate percentage of use to determine the interstate access minutes. (i.e., number of access minutes x projected interstate percentage of use = interstate access minutes). The number of interstate access minutes so determined will be subtracted from the total number of access minutes (i.e., number of access minutes - interstate access minutes). The intrastate access minutes for the group will be billed as set forth in Section 3., following.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

Executive Director

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.2. **OBLIGATIONS OF THE CUSTOMER (CONT'D)**

2.2.3. JURISDICTIONAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS (CONT'D)

- E. Effective on the first of January, April, July and October of each year, the customer may update the jurisdictional reports that require a projected interstate percentage. The customer shall forward to the Company, to be received no later than 20 calendar days after the first of each such month, a revised report showing the interstate percentage of use for the past three months ending the last day of December, March, June and September, respectively, for each service arranged for interstate and intrastate use. Except as set forth in B., preceding, where jurisdiction can be determined from the recorded message detail, the revised report will serve as the basis for the next three months billing and will be effective on the bill date in the following month (i.e., February, May, August, and November) for that service. No prorating or back billing will be done based on the report. If the customer does not supply the report, the Company will assume the percentage to be the same as that provided in the last quarterly report. For those cases in which a quarterly report has never been received from the customer, the Company will assume the percentage to be the same as that provided in the order for service as set forth in A., preceding.
- F. The customer reported projected interstate percentage of use as set forth in A., above will be used for the apportionment of any monthly rates or nonrecurring charges associated with Feature Groups B or D Switched Access Service until the end of the quarter during which the service was activated. Thereafter, a projected interstate percentage for such apportionment will be developed quarterly by the Company based on the data used to develop the projected interstate percentage of use as set forth in A., preceding. Where call detail is insufficient to make such a determination, the customer will be requested to project an interstate percentage of use to be used by the Company for such apportionment.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE** 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal

Executive Director

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.2. **OBLIGATIONS OF THE CUSTOMER (CONT'D)**

2.2.3. JURISDICTIONAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS (CONT'D)

- G. The customer shall keep sufficient detail from which the percentage of interstate use can be ascertained and upon request of the Company make the records available for inspection. Such a request will be initiated by the Company no more than once per year. The customer shall supply the data within 30 calendar days of the Company request.
- H. The customer may provide an additional percentage of interstate use for Common Transport and End Office/Local Switching subject to the reporting requirements previously listed in this section. The percentage of interstate use may be provided per individual facility or at the billing account level. Should the customer not provide a percentage of interstate use, the Company will use the reported Feature Group B or Feature Group D aggregated percentage of interstate use.
- I. In the sole discretion of the Company, all or any portion of the jurisdictional reporting requirements set out above may be waived.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

Executive Director

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.2. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CUSTOMER (CONT'D)

2.2.4. IDENTIFICATION AND RATING OF VOIP-PSTN TRAFFIC

(T)

A. Scope

(N)

VoIP-PSTN Traffic is defined as traffic exchanged between an Insight end user and the customer in time division multiplexing ("TDM") format that originates and/or terminates in Internet protocol ("IP") format. This section governs the identification of VoIP-PSTN Traffic that is required to be compensated at interstate access rates (unless the parties have agreed otherwise) by the Federal Communications Commission in its Report and Order in WC Docket Nos. 10-90, etc., FCC No. 11-161 (Nov.18, 2011) ("FCC ICC Order"). Specifically, this section establishes the method of separating such traffic (referred to in this tariff as "Relevant VoIP-PSTN Traffic") from the customer's traditional intrastate access traffic, so that such Relevant VoIP-PSTN Traffic can be billed in accordance with the FCC Order.

Rating of VoIP-PSTN Traffic В.

The Relevant VoIP-PSTN Traffic identified in accordance with this tariff section and in the absence of an interconnection agreement will be billed at rates equal to Insight's applicable tariffed interstate switched access rates as provided in Insight Communications Tariff FCC No. 1.

C. **PVU Factor**

Insight will determine the weighted access rate based on Insight's applicable interstate and intrastate access rates and a Percent VoIP Usage ("PVU") factor as set forth herein. The same PVU factor shall apply to all originating and all terminating intrastate access minutes. From December 29, 2011, to the date of the first revision to the PVU, Insight will apply the PVU factor equal to the percentage of VoIP subscribers in the most recently released Local Competition Report for Kentucky or if a state report is not available for Kentucky, the percentage of VoIP subscribers for the United States.

Insight will develop a weighted access rate reflecting the FCC ICC Order's application of interstate switched access rates to intrastate VoIP-PSTN MOUs based on the PVU factor and Insight's applicable interstate and intrastate access rates. This rate will be calculated as PVU factor times the interstate switched access rates found in Insight Tariff FCC No. 1 plus the intrastate switched access rates times (1.0 minus the PVU factor). This weighted rate will applicate the rate will be recommended by the rate of the rate will be recommended by the rate of the rate will be recommended by the rate of the intrastate access MOUs exchanged with the customer BUBETERIATIVE GOLD INSTITUTE TO STATE OF THE charges due on intrastate traffic. JEFF R. DEROUEN

(N) **EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR**

TARIFF BRANCH

Issued: December 27, 2011

Effect

12/29/2011

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affairs, New York, New York,

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.2. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CUSTOMER (CONT'D)

2.2.4. IDENTIFICATION AND RATING OF VOIP-PSTN TRAFFIC (CONT'D)

(T)

D. PVU Factor Updates

(N)

The initial PVU factor shall be updated when a new Local Competition Report is released or when an individual PVU factor is calculated pursuant to subsection 2.2.4.E., below which will be updated no later than 30 days from the semi-annual release of the new Local Competition Report. The updated PVU factor will apply prospectively to the customer's next applicable bill cycle and serve as the basis for billing until superseded by a new PVU.

E. PVU Factor Rebuttal

If the customer believes that the PVU factor as determined pursuant to subsection 2.2.4.C. or D, as applicable, is incorrect, it may seek to revise the PVU factor using the procedure prescribed in this subsection E. Any changes to PVU factor pursuant to this subsection E. shall be effective as of the next billing cycle after the customer provides the data required for recalculation, including documentation sufficient to establish the accuracy of the calculation of the PVU-IXC, as defined in subparagraph 2.4.4.E.(1)(A).

(1) Calculation and Application of the customer's individual PVU Factor

When a customer requests revision of the PVU, the individual PVU will be derived and applied as follows:

(A) The customer will calculate and furnish to Insight a factor (the PVU-Customer or "PVU-C") representing the percentage of the total intrastate and interstate access MOU that the customer exchanges with Insight in the State, that (i) is sent to Insight by the customer and that originated in IP format; or (ii) is received from Insight by the customer and terminated in IP format, as applicable. This PVU-C shall be based on information such as the number of the customer's retail VoIP subscriptions in the state (e.g., as reported on FCC Form 477), traffic studies, actual call detail, or other relevant and verifiable information. The customer must provide sufficient documentation to establish the accuracy of its calculations. Insight shall notify customer within 30 days of submission of the documentation whether customer's PVU-C will be accepted.

(N)

KENTUCKYPUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

JEFF R. DEROUEN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TARIFF BRANCH

Issued: December 27, 2011

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affairs, New York, 1

New York Men York

ans, ivew fork, iver FEGINVE

Effect

12/29/2011

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF No. 2 **SECTION 2**

Original Page 9.3

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.2. **OBLIGATIONS OF THE CUSTOMER (CONT'D)**

(T)

2.2.4. IDENTIFICATION AND RATING OF VOIP-PSTN TRAFFIC (CONT'D)

(N)

- (1) Calculation and Application of the customer's individual PVU Factor (Cont'd)
 - (B) Insight's factor will be the PVU-Provider or "PVU-P" representing the percentage of Insight's total intrastate and interstate access lines in the State that Insight originates or terminates on its network in IP format. This PVU-P shall be based on information reported by Insight on its most recent FCC Form 477.
 - (C) Insight will use the PVU-C and PVU-P factors to calculate an individual PVU factor that represents the percentage of total intrastate and interstate access MOU exchanged between an Insight end user and that customer that is originated or terminated in IP format, whether at Insight's end, at the customer's end, or at both ends. The individual PVU factor will be calculated as the sum of: (i) the PVU-C factor and (ii) the PVU-P factor times (1.0 minus the PVU-C factor).
 - (D) Insight will develop a weighted access rate reflecting the FCC ICC Order's application of interstate switched access rates to intrastate VoIP-PSTN MOUs based on the individual PVU factor and Insight's applicable interstate and intrastate access rates. This rate will be calculated as PVU factor times the interstate local switching rate in Insight Tariff FCC No. 1 plus the intrastate local switching rate times (1.0 minus the PVU factor). This weighted rate will apply to the total intrastate access MOUs exchanged with the customer to determine the access charges due on intrastate traffic.

(2) PVU Factor Verification

If the PVU is determined in accordance with this subsection 2.2.4.E., not more than twice in any year Insight may ask the customer to verify the PVU-C factor furnished to Insight and customer may ask Insight to verify the PVU-P factor and the calculation of the PVU factor. The party so requested shall comply, and shall reasonably provide the records and other information used to determine the respective PVU-C and PVU-P factors. If customer does not comply with a request from Insight for verification of the PVU-C factor within thirty (30) days, the PVU shall be set equal to the percentage of VoIP subscribers in the most recently released Local Competition Report for [state name] or if a state report is not available for [state], the percentage of VoIP subscribers for the United States until such time as customer provides the information required by paragraph 2.2.4.E.(1).

KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

> JEFF R. DEROUEN **EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR**

> > TARIFF BRANCH

Issued: December 27, 2011

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal A fairs, New York, New

Effectiv

12/29/2011

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

KY11-002

INSIGHT PHONE OF KENTUCKY, LLC

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF No. 2 SECTION 2

1st Revised Original Page 10 Cancels Original Page 10

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.2. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CUSTOMER (CONT'D)

2.2.5. CHANGES IN SERVICE REQUESTED

(T)

If the customer makes or requests material changes in circuit engineering, equipment specifications, service parameters, premises locations, or otherwise materially modifies any provision of the application for service, the customer's installation fees shall be adjusted according to the terms and conditions set forth in Section 2.8, following.

2.2.6. NOTICE TO COMPANY FOR CANCELLATION OF SERVICE

(T)

Customers desiring to terminate service shall provide the Company 30 days written notice of their desire to terminate service.

KENTUCKYPUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

JEFF R. DEROUEN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TARIFF BRANCH

Issued: December 27, 2011

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affairs, New York, INCH.

fairs Naw York Many York

12/29/2011

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

KY11-002

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.3. **CUSTOMER EQUIPMENT AND CHANNELS**

2.3.1. INTERCONNECTION OF FACILITIES

In order to protect the Company's facilities and personnel and the services furnished to other customers by the Company from potentially harmful effects, the signals applied to the Company's service shall be such as not to cause damage to the facilities of the Company. Any special interface equipment necessary to achieve the compatibility between facilities of the Company and the channels or facilities of others shall be provided at the customer's expense.

- A. The Company may, upon notification to the customer, at a reasonable time, make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the customer is complying with the Company's requirements for the installation, operation and maintenance of customer-provided equipment and for the wiring of the connection of customer equipment to Company-owned facilities.
- B. If the protective requirements in connection with customer-provided equipment are not being complied with, the Company may take such action as necessary to protect its facilities and personnel and will promptly notify the customer by registered mail in writing of the need for protective action. In the event that the customer fails to advise the Company within 10 days after such notice is received or within the time specified in the notice that corrective action has been taken, the Company may take whatever additional action is deemed necessary, including the suspension of service, to protect its facilities and personnel from harm. Company will, upon request 24 hours in advance, provide the customer with a statement of technical parameters that the customer's equipment must meet.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE** 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.4. ORDERING, RATING AND BILLING OF ACCESS SERVICES WHERE MORE THAN ONE EXCHANGE COMPANY IS INVOLVED

The Company accepts and adheres to the Ordering and Billing Forum guidelines, Multiple Exchange Carrier Access Billing (MECAB) and Multiple Exchange Carrier Ordering and Design (MECOD).

2.5. ALLOWANCE FOR INTERRUPTIONS IN SERVICE

2.5.1. GENERAL

- A. A credit allowance will be given when service is interrupted, except as specified in 2.5.2, following. A service is interrupted when it becomes inoperative to the customer; e.g., the customer is unable to transmit or receive because of a failure of a component furnished by the Company under this tariff.
- B. An interruption period begins when the customer reports a service, facility or circuit to be inoperative and, if necessary, releases it for testing and repair. An interruption period ends when the service, facility, or circuit is operative.
- C. If the customer reports a service, facility, or circuit to be interrupted but declines to release it for testing and repair, the service, facility, or circuit is considered to be impaired but not interrupted. No credit allowances will be made for a service, facility, or circuit considered by the Company to be impaired.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.5. ALLOWANCE FOR INTERRUPTIONS IN SERVICE (CONT'D)

2.5.2. LIMITATIONS ON ALLOWANCES

No credit allowance will be made for any interruption in service:

- A. Due to the negligence of or noncompliance with the provisions of this Tariff by any person or entity other than the Company, including but not limited to the customer or other common carriers connected to the service of the Company:
- B. Due to the failure of power, equipment, systems, connections or services not provided by the Company;
- C. Due to circumstances or causes beyond the control of the Company:
- D. During any period in which the Company is not given full and free access to its facilities and equipment for the purposes of investigating and correcting interruptions;
- E. During any period in which the customer continues to use the service on an impaired basis;
- F. During any period when the customer has released service to the Company for maintenance purposes or for implementation of a customer order for a change in service arrangements:
- G. That occurs or continues due to the customer's failure to authorize replacement of any element of special construction; and
- H. That was not reported to the Company within thirty (30) days of the date that service was affected.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE** 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.5. ALLOWANCE FOR INTERRUPTIONS IN SERVICE (CONT'D)

2.5.3. USE OF ANOTHER MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS

If the customer elects to use another means of communications during the period of interruption, the customer must pay the charges for the alternative service used.

2.5.4. APPLICATION OF CREDITS FOR INTERRUPTIONS IN SERVICE

In case of an interruption to any service, allowance for the period of interruption, if not due to the negligence of the customer, shall be as follows:

- A. For Switched Access Service, no credit shall be allowed for an interruption of less than 24 hours. The customer shall be credited for an interruption of 24 hours or more at the rate of 1/30 of (a) any applicable monthly rates, or (b) the assumed minutes of use charge for each period of 24 hours or major fraction thereof that the interruption continues.
- B. The credit allowance(s) for an interruption or for a series of interruptions shall not exceed (a) any applicable monthly rates, or (b) the assumed minutes of use charge for the service interrupted in any one monthly billing period.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

Insight Phone of Kentucky, LLC

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF No. 2 SECTION 2 Original Page 15

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.6. PRIVACY RULES

Automatic Number Identification (ANI) derived information may be used only for billing, routing, screening, ensuring network performance, completing calls or performing, services directly related to the telephone caller's original call or transaction. Therefore, should the business that receives ANI information have an established customer relationship with the caller, the business may offer products or services to the caller that are directly related to the products or services previously purchased by the caller. The business that receives ANI information may not establish marketing lists or conduct ongoing market calls for unrelated products or services or sell the information derived from ANI (caller's name, address, telephone billing number, purchasing habits, etc.) to third parties unless it gets the prior written consent of the caller.

PUF

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.7. APPLICATION OF RATES AND CHARGES

The regulations set forth in this section govern the application of rates for services contained in other sections of this Tariff.

2.7.1. MEASURING ACCESS MINUTES

Customer traffic to End Offices will be measured (i.e., recorded or assumed) by the Company at End Office switches. Originating and terminating calls will be measured (i.e., recorded or assumed) by the Company to determine the basis for computing chargeable access minutes. In the event the customer message detail is not available because the Company lost or damaged tapes or experienced recording system outages, the Company will estimate the volume of lost customer access minutes of use based on previously known values. Access minutes will be recorded to the nearest one second for any particular call. Access minutes or fractions thereof are accumulated over the billing period for each End Office and are then rounded up to the nearest access minute for each end office.

For originating calls over Feature Group B or D, usage measurement begins when the originating Feature Group B or D switch receives the first wink supervisory signal forwarded from the customer's point of termination.

The measurement of originating call usage ends when the originating Feature Group B or D switch receives disconnect supervision from either the originating end user's end office, indicating the originating end user has disconnected, or the customer's point of termination, whichever is recognized first by the switch.

For terminating calls over Feature Group B or D, the measurement of access minutes begins when the terminating Feature Group B or D switch receives answer supervision from the terminating end user's end office, indicating the terminating end user has answered.

The measurement of terminating call usage over Feature Group B or D ends when the terminating Feature Group B or D switch receives disconnect supervision from either the terminating end user's end office, indicating the terminating end user has disconnected, or the customer's point of termination, whichever is recognized first by the switch.

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011
SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Executive Director

Affi By

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.7. APPLICATION OF RATES AND CHARGES (CONT'D)

2.7.2. RATES BASED UPON DISTANCE

Where the charges for service are specified based upon distance, the following rules apply:

- A. Distance between two points is measured as airline distance between the wire centers of the originating and terminating telephone lines. The wire center is a set of geographic coordinates, as referenced in National Exchange Carrier Association, Inc. Tariff F.C.C. No. 4, associated with each NPA-NXX combination (where NPA is the area code and NXX is the first three digits of a seven-digit telephone number). Except that, until the National Exchange Carrier Association, Inc. Tariff F.C.C. No. 4 is revised to include certain Company wire centers, the airline distance should be determined utilizing the "V" (vertical) and "H" (horizontal) coordinates as set forth in any applicable Company tariffs on file with the FCC.
- B. The airline distance between any two wire centers is determined as follows:
 - 1. Obtain the "V" and "H" coordinates for each wire center from the above referenced NECA tariff.
 - 2. Compute the difference between the "V" coordinates of the two wire centers; and the difference between the two "H" coordinates.
 - 3. Square each difference obtained in step (2) above.
 - 4. Add the square of the "V" difference and the square of the "H" difference obtained in step (3).
 - 5. Divide the sum of the squares by 10. Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained.
 - 6. Obtain the square root of the whole number result obtained above. Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the airline mileage.
- C. The airline mileage is used to determine the Switched Access Service Common Mileage rates as set forth in Section 3.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011
______SECTION 9 (1)_____

Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

Executive Director

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.7. APPLICATION OF RATES AND CHARGES (CONT'D)

2.7.3. Nonrecurring Charges

Nonrecurring charges are one-time charges that apply for a specific work activity (i.e., installation or service rearrangements).

A. Installation of Service

Nonrecurring charges apply to each Access Service installed. For Switched Services ordered on a per trunk basis, the charge is applied per trunk. For Switched Services ordered on a busy hour minutes of capacity basis, the charge is also applied on a per trunk basis but the charge applies only when the capacity ordered requires the installation of an additional trunk(s).

B. Service Rearrangements

All changes to existing services other than changes involving administrative activities only will be treated as a discontinuance of the existing service and an installation of a new service. The nonrecurring charge described in A., preceding, will apply for this work activity. Moves that change the physical location of the point of termination are described below.

1. Moves Within the Same Building

When the move is to a new location within the same building, the charge for the move will be an amount equal to one half of the nonrecurring charge for the capacity affected. There will be no change in the minimum period requirements.

2. Moves to a Different Building

Moves to a different building will be treated as a discontinuance and start of service and all associated nonrecurring charges will apply. New minimum period requirements will be established for the new service. The customer will also remain responsible for satisfying all outstanding minimum period charges for the discontinued service.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

Executive Director

Issued: December 10, 2004

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.8. ACCESS SERVICE ORDER

2.8.1. **ORDERING REQUIREMENTS**

- A. A Switched Access Service Order is used by the Company to provide a customer Switched Access Service. When placing an order for Switched Access Service, the customer shall provide, at a minimum, the following information:
 - 1. For Feature Group B Switched Access Service, the customer shall specify the number of trunks and the End Office when direct routing to the End Office is desired. When ordering FGB trunks to an End Office, the customer must also provide the Company an estimate of the amount of traffic to be generated to and/or from each End Office subtending an access tandem to assist the Company in the effort to project further facility requirements. In addition, the customer shall also specify for terminating only access, whether the trunks are to be arranged in trunk group arrangements or provided as single trunks.
 - 2. For Feature Group D Switched Access Service, the customer shall specify the number of busy hour minutes of capacity (BHMC) from the customer's premises to the End Office by Feature Group and by traffic type. This information is used to determine the number of transmission paths. The customer shall also specify the Common Transport and Local Switching options. Customers may, at their option, order FGD by specifying the number of trunks and the End Office when direct routing to the end office is desired and the Common Transport and Local Switching options desired. When a customer orders FGD in trunks, the customer is responsible to assure that sufficient access facilities have been ordered to handle its traffic. When ordering by trunk quantities rather than BHMC quantities to an end office, the customer must also provide the Company an estimate of the amount of traffic it will generate to and/or from each End Office to assist the Company in its own efforts to project further facility requirements.

OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE** 1/10/2005

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Executive Director

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.8. ACCESS SERVICE ORDER (CONT'D)

2.8.2. ACCESS SERVICE ORDER INTERVALS

Switched Access Service is provided with one of the following Service Date Intervals:

- Negotiated Interval
- Advance Order Interval

A. Negotiated Interval

The Company will negotiate a service date interval with the customer. The Company will offer a service date based on the type and quantity of Access Services the customer has requested. All services for which rates are applied on an individual case basis are provided with a Negotiated Interval.

The initial establishment of service where the customer is:

MAXIMUM INTERVAL

1. Not yet provided with any FGB or FGD service in the LATA

6 months

2. Provided FGB or FGD service in the LATA

90 Days

EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY

Effective: January 10, 2005

BOO

Executive Director

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.8. ACCESS SERVICE ORDER (CONT'D)

2.8.2. ACCESS SERVICE ORDER INTERVALS (CONT'D)

- B. Advance Order Interval
 - 1. When placing an Access Order, a customer may request an Advance Order Interval for a service date of 12 to 24 months from the Application Date for the following services:
 - A minimum of 24 voice grade equivalent Access Service lines or trunks or 720 **BHMCs**
 - 2. Orders for less than the minimum quantities will be accommodated under Negotiated Interval provisions.
 - 3. Advance Order Interval Access Orders are subject to all ordering conditions of Negotiated Interval Access Orders except for the following:
 - 4. A nonrefundable Advance Payment will be calculated as follows:
 - The minimum monthly charge for the minimum period plus the applicable Nonrecurring Charges for the services ordered.
 - 5. This Advance Payment is due 10 working days from the date the Company confirms acceptance of the order, or on the Application Date, whichever date is the later date. If the Advance Payment is not received by such payment date, the order will be canceled.
 - 6. When the Access Services are connected on the service date, the Advance Payment will be applied as a credit to the customer's billed service charges. When there has been a decrease in the number of services originally ordered, as described below, only the portion of the Advance Payment for services actually installed will be credited.
 - 7. Cancellation or Partial Cancellation of an Advance Order Interval Access Order
 - a. When the customer cancels an Access Order, the order will be withdrawn. The Advance Payment will not be credited or refunded.

b. Any decrease in the number of ordered Access Services will be treated as a partial cancellation, and the portion of the Advance Bayonette convinces SION canceled will not be credited or refunded.

OF KENTUCKY

EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.8. ACCESS SERVICE ORDER (CONT'D)

2.8.3. ACCESS ORDER MODIFICATIONS

The customer may request a modification of its Access Order at any time prior to notification by the Company that service is available for the customer's use or prior to the service date, whichever is later.

Any increase in the number of Access Service lines, trunks or busy hour minutes of capacity or CCSA signaling connections will be treated as a new Access Order (for the increased amount only).

A. Service Date Change Charge

Access Order service dates for the installation of new services or rearrangements of existing services may be changed, but the new service date may not exceed the original service date by more than 30 calendar days. When, for any reason, the customer indicates that service cannot be accepted for a period not to exceed 30 calendar days, and the Company accordingly delays the start of service, a Service Date Change Charge will apply. If the customer requested service date is more than 30 calendar days after the original service date, the order will be canceled by the Company and reissued with the appropriate cancellation charges applied.

A Service Date Change Charge will apply, on a per order, per occurrence basis, for each service date changed. The applicable charge is found in E., following.

B. Partial Cancellation Charge

Any decrease in the number of ordered Access Service lines, trunks or busy hour minutes of capacity ordered with a Negotiated Interval Access Order will be treated as a partial cancellation and the charges as set forth in E., following, will apply. Partial cancellation charges do not apply to Advance Order Interval Access Orders.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.8. ACCESS SERVICE ORDER (CONT'D)

2.8.3. ACCESS ORDER MODIFICATIONS (CONT'D)

C. Design Change Charge

The customer may request a design change to the service ordered. A design change is any change to an Access Order which requires engineering review. Design changes do not include a change of customer premises, end user premises, end office switch, or Feature Group type except for changes to Feature Group D. Changes of this nature will require the issuance of a new order and the cancellation of the original order with appropriate cancellation charges applied.

The Design Change Charge will apply on a per order, per occurrence basis, for each order requiring a design change. The applicable charge is found in E., following.

If a change of service date is required, the Service Date Change Charge will also apply.

D. Expedited Order Charge

When placing an Access Order for service(s), a customer may request a service date that is prior to the service date that has been negotiated by the Company and the customer. A customer may also request an earlier service date on a pending Negotiated or Advance Order Interval Access Order. If the Company agrees to provide service on an expedited basis, an Expedited Order Charge will apply.

If the Company receives a request for an expedited service date at the time an Access Order is placed, the Expedited Order Charge is calculated by summing all the nonrecurring charges associated with the order and then dividing this total by the number of days in the negotiated service period. The charge is then applied on a per day of improvement basis, per order, but in no event shall the charge exceed fifty percent of the total nonrecurring charges associated with the Access Order.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.8. ACCESS SERVICE ORDER (CONT'D)

ACCESS ORDER MODIFICATIONS (CONT'D) 2.8.3.

E. Order Charges

		Nonrecurring Charge
1.	Partial Cancellation Charge, Per order, per occurrence	\$26.00
2.	Design Change Charge, Per order, per occurrence	\$26.00
3.	Service Date Change Charge, Per order, per occurrence	\$26.00

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.8. ACCESS SERVICE ORDER (CONT'D)

2.8.4. CANCELLATION OF AN ACCESS ORDER

- A. A customer may cancel an Access Order for the installation of service at any time prior to notification by the Company that service is available for the customer's use or prior to the service date, whichever is later. The cancellation date is the date the Company receives written or verbal notice from the customer that the order is to be canceled. The verbal notice must be followed by written confirmation within 10 days. If a customer or end user is unable to accept Access Service within 30 calendar days after the original service date, the customer has the choice of the following options:
 - 1. The Access Order shall be canceled and charges set forth in B., following will apply, or
 - 2. Billing for the service will commence.

If no cancellation request is received within the specified 30 calendar days, billing for the service will commence. In any event, the cancellation date or the date billing is to commence, as applicable, shall be the 31st day beyond the original service date of the Access Order.

- B. When a customer cancels a Negotiated Interval Access Order for the installation of service, a Cancellation Charge will apply as follows:
 - 1. When the customer cancels an Access Order, a charge equal to the estimated provisioning costs incurred at a particular date for the service ordered by the Company shall apply.
 - 2. If the Company misses a service date for a Negotiated Interval Access Order by more than 30 days, due to circumstances such as acts of God, governmental requirements, work stoppages and civil commotions, the customer may cancel the Access Order without incurring cancellation charges.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)
Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.8. ACCESS SERVICE ORDER (CONT'D)

2.8.5. MINIMUM PERIOD

- A. The minimum period for which Switched Access Service is provided and for which charges are applicable, is three months.
- The following changes will be treated as a discontinuance of the existing service and an installation of a new service. A new minimum period will be established. All associated nonrecurring charges will apply for the new service.
 - A move to a different building.
 - A change in type of service.
 - A change in Switched Access Service Interface Group.
 - Change in Switched Access Service traffic type.

2.8.6. MINIMUM PERIOD CHARGE

When Access Service is disconnected prior to the expiration of the minimum period, charges are applicable for the balance of the minimum period.

The Minimum Period Charge for monthly billed services will be determined as follows:

- A. All unpaid Nonrecurring Charges reasonably expended by Company to establish service to customer, plus;
- B. Any disconnection, early cancellation or termination charges reasonably incurred and paid to third parties by Company on behalf of customer, plus;
- C. All Recurring Charges specified in the applicable Service Order for the balance of the then current minimum period;
- D. Minus a reasonable allowance for costs avoided by the Company as a direct result of customer's cancellation.

In addition to the Minimum Period Charge, Termination Liabilities may apply, as set forth elsewhere, for those services ordered under Term Agreements.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE** 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.9. BILLING AND PAYMENT

The Company shall bill on a current basis all charges incurred by and credits due to the customer. The customer shall receive its bill in a paper format. Such bills are due upon receipt. The Company will, upon request and if available, furnish such detailed information as may reasonably be required for verification of the customer's bill.

All bills for service provided to the customer by the Company are due (payment date) within 21 calendar days of the bill being sent and are payable in immediately available funds. If such payment due date would cause payment to be due on a Saturday, Sunday or Legal Holiday, payment for such bills shall be due from the customer as follows:

If such payment due date falls on a Sunday or on a Legal Holiday, the payment due date shall be the first non-Holiday date following such Sunday or Legal Holiday. If such payment due date falls on a Saturday or on a Legal Holiday that is observed on Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday, the payment due date shall be the last non-Holiday day preceding such Saturday or Legal Holiday.

The customer will be assessed a charge of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each check submitted by the customer to the Company which a financial institution refuses to honor.

If any portion of the payment is received by the Company after the due date, or if any portion of the payment is received by the Company in funds which are not immediately available upon presentment, then a late payment penalty shall be due to the Company. The late payment penalty shall be the portion of the payment not received by the due date, multiplied by a late factor. The late factor shall be 1.5% per month.

2.9.1. TAXES

The customer is responsible for payment of any sales, use, gross receipts, excise, access, franchise or other local, state and federal taxes, charges, fees or surcharges (however designated) (excluding taxes on the Company's net income) imposed on or based upon the provision, sale or use of network services. Where applicable, such taxes will be billed by the Company to the customer and will be separately stated on the customer's invoice; provided, however, that the Company will not bill to the customer such taxes as may be exempted by a tax exemption or resale certificate for operation in any

jurisdiction in which the customer obtains such a partificate SERVICE COMMISSION

OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011
SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.9. BILLING AND PAYMENT (CONT'D)

2.9.2. CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

In the event that a billing dispute occurs concerning any charge billed to the customer by the Company, the customer must submit a documented claim for the disputed amount. The customer will submit all documentation as may reasonably be required to support the claim. All claims must be submitted to the Company within 120 days of receipt of billing for that service. If the customer does not submit a claim as stated above, the customer waives all rights to filing a claim thereafter. All disputes between the Company and the customer that cannot be settled through negotiation may be resolved by arbitration upon written demand of either party. Arbitration shall be referred to the American Arbitration Association (AAA) and conducted pursuant to its Commercial Arbitration Rules. The arbitrator shall have the authority to award compensatory damages solely; such award shall be final and binding and may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. The provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern such arbitration. This dispute process does not preclude the customer from filing a complaint with the Kentucky Public Service Commission.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

> > 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa:

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.9. BILLING AND PAYMENT (CONT'D)

2.9.3. PAYMENT OF DEPOSITS

To safeguard its interests, the Company may require a customer to make a deposit to be held as a guarantee for the payment of charges. A deposit does not relieve the customer of the responsibility for the prompt payment of bills on presentation. The deposit will not exceed an amount equal to:

- two month's charges for a service or facility which has a minimum payment period of one month; or
- the charges that would apply for the minimum payment period for a service or facility which has a minimum payment period of more than one month; except that the deposit may include an additional amount in the event that a termination charge is applicable.

A deposit may be required in addition to an Advance Payment.

When a service or facility is discontinued, the amount of a deposit, if any, will be applied to the customer's account and any credit balance remaining will be refunded. Before the service or facility is discontinued, the company may, at its option, return the deposit or credit it to the customer's account. If the amount of the deposit is insufficient to cover the balance due to the customer's account, the Company retains the right to collect any amounts owing after the deposit has been applied plus any costs related to the collection of any remaining balance.

Deposits held will accrue interest at a simple interest rate equal to the rate applicable for the late payment charge set forth in 2.9, preceding. Interest will not accrue on any deposit after the date on which reasonable effort has been made to return it to the customer.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affa

2. GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.9. SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION

All rates and charges quoted herein provide for the furnishing of facilities when suitable facilities are available or where the design or construction of the necessary facilities does not involve unusual costs.

When, at the request of the customer, the Company designs and/or constructs facilities that it would otherwise not construct, or the construction of such facilities involves a greater expense than would otherwise be incurred, Special Construction nonrecurring charges may apply.

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

> 1/10/2005 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

Executive Director

KY04-002

3. SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE

3.1. **GENERAL**

Switched Access Service, which is available to customers for their use in furnishing their services to end users, provides a two-point communications path between a customer's premises and an end user's premises. It provides for the use of common terminating, switching and trunking facilities. Switched Access Service provides for the ability to originate calls from an end user's premises to a customer's premises, and to terminate calls from a customer's premises to an end user's premises in the LATA where it is provided. Switched Access Service must be ordered separately for each LATA in which the customer desires to originate or terminate calls.

3.2. PROVISION AND DESCRIPTION

Switched Access Service is provided in two service categories of standard and optional features called Feature Groups. The Company provides Feature Group B and Feature Group D originating and terminating Switched Access. The service categories are differentiated by their technical characteristics and the manner in which an end user accesses them when originating calls.

3.2.1. FEATURE GROUP B

FGB Access, which is available to all customers, provides trunk side access to Company End Office switches with an associated uniform 950-XXXX access code for the customer's use in originating and terminating communications.

3.2.2. FEATURE GROUP D

FGD Access, which is available to all customers, provides trunk side access to Company End Office switches with an associated uniform 10XX-XXX access code for the customer's use in originating and terminating communications. No access code is required for calls to a customer over FGD if the end user's telephone exchange service is arranged for presubscription to that customer.

3.2.3. 8XX TOLL-FREE ACCESS SERVICE

8XX Toll-Free Access Service is a service offering utilizing originating trunk side Switched Access Service. The service provides for the forwarding of end user dialed 8XX calls to a Company Service Switching Point which will initiate a query to the data base to perform the customer identification and delivery function. The call is forwarded to the appropriate customer based on

the dialed 8XX number.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

Executive Director

Issued: December 10, 2004

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF No. 2 SECTION 3 1st Revised Page 2

Cancels Original Page 2

3. SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE

3.3. SWITCHED ACCESS RATE CATEGORIES

The rate categories that apply to Switched Access Service are as follows:

- Carrier Common Line
- Switched Transport (includes Tandem Transport, Direct-Trunked Transport and Local Channel/Entrance Facilities)
- Local Switching
- Interconnection Charge

• 8XX Toll-Free Access Service

(C)

(N)

Rates for switched access are dependent upon the Zone in which they originate or terminate. Each Zone is defined based upon the Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier also offering service in that territory. If the Zones are not specified for a rate, the rate applies to all areas. The Zones are:

Zone 1 Territory also served by AT&T SE Region

Zone 2 Territory also served by Cincinnati Bell

Zone 3 Territory also served by Windstream East

Zone 4 Territory also served by Windstream West

Zone 5 Territory served by All Other Carriers

(N)

Switched Access rates are as set forth in Section 3.4, following.

3.3.1. CARRIER COMMON LINE

The Carrier Common Line rate category provides for the use of Company common lines by customers for access to end users to furnish customer interstate communications.

A. Limitations

- 1. A telephone number is not provided with Carrier Common Line.
- 2. Detail billing is not provided for Carrier Common Line.
- 3. Directory listings are not included in the rates and charges for Carrier Common Line
- 4. Intercept arrangements are not included in the rates and charges for Carrier Common Line.

5. All trunk side connections provided in the same combined access group will be limited to the same features and operating characteristics.

BLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE
4/1/2009

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

ril 1, 2009

Issued: March 16, 2009

Gregory Cameron, Vice President - Telecommunications Legal A

3. SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE

3.3. SWITCHED ACCESS RATE CATEGORIES (CONT'D)

3.3.1. CARRIER COMMON LINE (CONT'D)

B. Rate Regulations

Where the customer is provided with Switched Access Service under this Tariff, the Company will provide the use of Company common lines by a customer for access to end users.

- 1. The Carrier Common Line charges will be billed per access minute to each Switched Access Service customer.
- 2. When the customer reports interstate and intrastate use of Switched Access Service, the Carrier Common Line charges will be billed only to intrastate.
- 3. All Switched Access Service provided to the customer will be subject to Carrier Common Line charges.

3.3.2. SWITCHED TRANSPORT

The Transport rate category provides for transmission facilities between the customer's premises and the End Office or Access Tandem switch(es) where the customer's traffic is switched to originate or terminate its communications.

Switched Transport is a two-way voice-frequency transmission path which may consist of an Entrance Facility (EF), Direct-Trunked Transport (DTT) Facility or Tandem Transport.

OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011
SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

3. SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE

3.3. SWITCHED ACCESS RATE CATEGORIES (CONT'D)

3.3.2. SWITCHED TRANSPORT (CONT'D)

A. Tandem Transport Rate Elements

1. Common Facility Rate

The Common Facility rate provides that portion of the voice frequency transmission path from the customer's premises to the End Office and/or Access Tandem. Between the customer's premises and the Access Tandem or End Office, the customer may use Common Facilities. Where Common Facilities are utilized, a per minute of use Common Facility rate is applied.

2. Common Mileage

The Common Mileage rate provides for transmission facilities between the customer's premises and the Company's end office. The mileage to be used to determine the Common Mileage monthly rates is calculated on the airline distance between the end office switch where the call originates or terminates and the customer's serving wire center. The V&H coordinates method set forth in 2.7.2, preceding is used to determine mileage.

The Common Mileage is assessed on a per minute of use, per mile basis, as applicable. To calculate the Common Mileage rate to be billed, first compute the mileage. If the calculation results in a fraction of a mile, round up to the next whole mile before determining the mileage. Then multiply the mileage by the appropriate Common Mileage rate. The amount to be billed shall be the product of this calculation (i.e., the number of miles multiplied by the per mile rate) multiplied by the number of access minutes.

EFFECTIVE 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011
SECTION 9 (1)

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

3. SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE

3.3. SWITCHED ACCESS RATE CATEGORIES (CONT'D)

3.3.2. SWITCHED TRANSPORT (CONT'D)

B. Direct-Trunked Transport

1. Voice Grade/DSO Facility

A Voice Grade facility is an electrical communications path which provides voice-frequency transmission in the nominal frequency range of 300 to 3000 HZ and may be terminated two-wire or four-wire.

2. DS1 Facility

A DS1 facility is capable of transmitting electrical signals at a nominal 1.544 Mbps, with the capability to channelize up to 24 voice-frequency transmission paths.

3. DS3 Facility

A DS3 facility is capable of transmitting electrical signals at a nominal 44.736 Mbps, with the capability to channelize up to 672 voice-frequency transmission paths.

C. Local Channel/Entrance Facility

The Local Channel/Entrance Facility provides a communications path between the customer's premises and the serving wire center of that premises. The Local Channel/Entrance Facility rate is assessed a monthly fixed charge based on the capacity (e.g., Voice Grade/DS0, DS1, or DS3) ordered.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

Executive Director

Issued: December 10, 2004

3. SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE

SWITCHED ACCESS RATE CATEGORIES (CONT'D) 3.3.

3.3.3. **LOCAL SWITCHING**

The Local Switching rate category provides the local end office switching and end user termination functions necessary to complete the transmission of Switched Access communications to and from the end users served by the Company's End Office.

A. Local Switching Rate Element

The Local Switching rate element provides local dial switching for Feature Groups B and D.

B. Common Trunk Port

The end office Common Trunk Port rate provides for the termination of common transport trunks in shared end office ports. The end office Common Trunk Port rate is assessed on a per-MOU basis to all trunkside originating and terminating access minutes utilizing tandem routing to an end office.

C. Dedicated Trunk Port

The end office Dedicated Trunk Port rate provides for the termination of a trunk to a dedicated trunk port in an end office. The rate is assessed per month for each FG trunk in service directly routed (via DTT) between the SWC and the end office.

D. Interconnection Charge

The Interconnection Charge shall be assessed upon all customers interconnecting with the Company's switched access network. Interconnection is applicable to all switched access originating and terminating minutes of use.

8XX TOLL-FREE ACCESS SERVICE 3.3.4.

The 8XX Toll-Free Access Service customer identification and delivery charge applies for the identification of the appropriate customer and the delivery of the dialed 8XX ten-digit number. The charge is assessed to the customer on a per query basis and may include an area of service which may range from a single NPA/NXX to an area consisting of any areas served by the Company.

Service.

All appropriate Switched Access rate elements apply to 8XX Tell Free Access ISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE** 1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

Effective: January 10, 2005 SECTION 9

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affair

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF NO. 2

SECTION 3

3rd Revised Page 7

Cancels 2nd Revised Page 7

3. SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE

3.4. SWITCHED ACCESS RATES AND CHARGES

3.4.1. **SERVICE IMPLEMENTATION**

NONRECURRING CHARGE

Installation Charge, Per Location, Per Order A.

> 1. First Trunk \$150.00 Each Subsequent Trunk 2. 36.00

3.4.2 CARRIER COMMON LINE

RECURRING RATE PER MOU

A. Originating or Terminating

Zone 1	\$0.000000
Zone 2	\$0.000000
Zone 3	\$0.000000
Zone 4	\$0.000000
Zone 5	\$0.000000

3.4.3. SWITCHED TRANSPORT

A. **Tandem Transport**

1.	Common Facility	Originating	Terminating
	Zone 1	\$0.001760	\$0.0001680 (R)
	Zone 2	\$0.001760	\$0.0006000 (R)
	Zone 3	\$0.001760	\$0.0000479 (R)
	Zone 4	\$0.000722	\$0.0002480 (R)
	Zone 5	\$0.001760	\$0.0001680 (R)

2. Common Mileage, per mile

Zone 1	\$0.000023 \$0.0000200 (R)
Zone 2	\$0.000023 \$0.0001170 (I)
Zone 3	\$0.000023 KENSOJOOQV 142 (R)
Zone 4	\$ <i>P</i> .0001156SERV \$0E00011/1001\$R)ON
Zone 5	\$0.0000 2EFF R.\$0ER002EN (R)
	EVECUTIVE DIDECTOR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TARIFF BRANCH

Issued: June 14, 2013

Julie P. Laine, Group VP & Chief Counsel, Regulatory, New York, NY 10023 SECTION 9 (1)

3. SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE

3.4. SWITCHED ACCESS RATES AND CHARGES (CONT'D)

3.4.3. SWITCHED TRANSPORT (CONT'D)

B. Local Channel/Entrance Facility

		Nonrecurring Charge	
	FIRST	ADD'L	RATE
1. VG/DS0	\$314.69	\$125.19	\$44.57
2. DS1	750.50	300.00	130.48
3. DS3	870.50	427.88	1515.55

C. Direct Trunked Transport

1 VC	Nonrecurring Charge	MONTHLY RATE
1. VG• Per Mile• Termination	\$ 79.85	\$ 1.62 23.50
DS0Per MileTermination	24.01	3.98 43.00
3. DS1Per MileTermination	100.49	19.05 68.89
4. DS3Per MileTermination	- 67.19	97.25 972.54

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF NO. 2

SECTION 3

3rd Revised Page 9 Cancels 2nd Revised Page 9

3. SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE

3.4. SWITCHED ACCESS RATES AND CHARGES

LOCAL SWITCHING 3.4.4

Local Switching A.

1.	Originating or Terminating Access	Originating	Terminating
	Zone 1	\$0.025000	\$0.0021260 (R)
	Zone 2	\$0.025000	\$0.0036714 (R)
	Zone 3	\$0.025000	\$0.0013823 (R)
	Zone 4	\$0.041200	\$0.0037750 (R)
	Zone 5	\$0.025000	\$0.0021260 (R)
2.	Common Trunk Port		
	Zone 1	\$0.000800	\$0.0008000
	Zone 2	\$0.000800	\$0.0009680 (I)
	Zone 3	\$0.000800	\$0.0007029 (R)
	Zone 4	\$0.000800	\$0.0011840 (I)
	Zone 5	\$0.000800	\$0.0008000
3.	Interconnection Charge		
	Zone 1	\$0.000000	
	Zone 2	\$0.000000	
	Zone 3	\$0.000000	
	Zone 4	\$0.013179	\$0.000000 (R)
	Zone 5	\$0.000000	

KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

JEFF R. DEROUEN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TARIFF BRANCH

Issued: June 14, 2013

Julie P. Laine, Group VP & Chief Counsel, Regulatory, New York, NY 10023 SECTION 9 (1)

Insight Phone of Kentucky, LLC

KENTUCKY P.S.C. TARIFF No. 2 SECTION 4 Original Page 1

4. RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

5. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

5.1. **PRESUBSCRIPTION**

Presubscription is an arrangement whereby an end user may select and designate to the Company an Interexchange Carrier (IC) to access, without an access code. for interexchange calls. This IC is referred to as the end user's Primary Interexchange Carrier (PIC). The end user may select as its PIC any IC that orders originating FGD Switched Access Service at the end office that serves the end user. After the end user's initial selection of a predesignated IC, for any additional change in selection, a nonrecurring charge as set forth in 5.6. following, applies.

New end users who are served by end offices equipped with FGD, will be asked to presubscribe to an IC at the time they place an order with the Company for Exchange Access Service. They may select either of the following options. There will be no additional charge for this initial selection:

- Designate an IC as a PIC and dial 10XXX to reach other ICs.
- Designate that they do not want to be presubscribed to any IC and choose to dial 10XXX for all calls to all ICs.

Subsequent to the installation of Exchange Access Service, and after the end user's initial selection of a PIC, for any additional change in selection, a nonrecurring charge as set forth in 5.6, following, applies.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affair

5. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

5.2. UNAUTHORIZED PRIMARY INTEREXCHANGE CARRIER CHANGE

An unauthorized Primary Interexchange Carrier (PIC) change is a PIC change that is requested by an interexchange carrier (IC) when the Local Exchange Service customer, or their authorized agent, denies authorizing the PIC change and the IC is unable to produce a valid letter of authorization for the change from the customer or the customer's authorized agent.

The interval during which a customer may submit a claim for an unauthorized PIC change will be twelve months from the date of the original PIC change.

An unauthorized PIC change is subject to the charge specified in 5.6, following.

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

5. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

5.3. ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING

Additional Engineering will be provided by the Company at the request of the customer only when:

- A customer requests additional technical information after the Company has already provided the technical information normally included on the Design Layout Report (DLR).
- Additional engineering time is incurred by the Company to engineer a customer's request for a customized technical specifications package.

The Company will notify the customer that additional engineering charges, as set forth in Section 5.6, following, will apply before any additional engineering is undertaken.

5.4. MAINTENANCE OF SERVICE

When a customer reports a trouble to the Company for clearance and no trouble is found in the Company's facilities, the customer shall be responsible for payment of a Maintenance of Service Charge for the period of time from when Company personnel are dispatched to the customer's location to when the work is completed. Failure of Company personnel to find trouble in Company facilities will result in no charge if the trouble is actually in those facilities, but not discovered at the time.

The customer shall be responsible for payment of a Maintenance of Service Charge when the Company dispatches personnel to the customer's location and the trouble is in equipment or communications systems provided by other than the Company or in detariffed CPE provided by the Company.

In either A. or B., preceding, no credit allowance will be applicable for the interruption involved if the Maintenance of Service Charge applies.

The charges for Maintenance of Service are set forth in Section 5.6, following.

OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

5. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

5.5. SPECIAL ASSEMBLIES AND INDIVIDUAL CASE BASIS ARRANGEMENTS

Arrangements will be developed on an Individual Case Basis (ICB) in response to a bona fide request from a customer or prospective customer to develop a bid for any switched or special access service that the Company is technically capable of providing but which is not offered under this Tariff (special assembly), or to develop a competitive bid for a service that the Company offers under this Tariff (ICB). Rates quoted in response to such competitive requests may be different than those specified for such services in this Tariff. ICB and special assembly rates will be offered to the customer in writing and on a nondiscriminatory basis. Customers served on a non-tariffed basis for services offered under this Tariff as of the effective date hereof shall be entitled to continue their existing serving arrangements under the same terms and conditions as "special assemblies," but those terms and conditions will not necessarily be available to new customers when the same service is available under this Tariff. In addition, the Company may from time to time offer promotional or other special discounts to customers who initiate service within the time contemplated by the promotional or other special discount offer.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1)

Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affair

5. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

5.6. RATES AND CHARGES

	Nonrecurring Charge
A. Presubscription Charge	
- Per Telephone Exchange Service Line or Trunk	\$ 5.00
B. Unauthorized PIC Change Charge	
- Per occurrence	21.50
C. Additional Engineering	
 Basic Time, normally scheduled working hours, per engineer 	
- First 1/2 hour or fraction thereof	31.00
- Each additional 1/2 hour or fraction thereof	22.00
 Overtime, outside normally scheduled working hours, per engineer 	
- First 1/2 hour or fraction thereof	37.00
- Each additional 1/2 hour or fraction thereof	26.00

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affair

Executive Director

Issued: December 10, 2004

5. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

5.6. RATES AND CHARGES (CONT'D)

	Nonrecurring Charge
D. Maintenance of Service	
 Basic Time, normally scheduled working hours, per engineer 	
- First 1/2 hour or fraction thereof	\$60.00
- Each additional 1/2 hour or fraction thereof	40.00
2. Overtime, outside normally scheduled working hours, per engineer	
- First 1/2 hour or fraction thereof	67.00
- Each additional 1/2 hour or fraction thereof	48.00
3. Premium Time, outside normally scheduled working day, per engineer	
- First 1/2 hour or fraction thereof	74.00
- Each additional 1/2 hour or fraction thereof	55.00

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

1/10/2005

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

SECTION 9 (1) Effective: January 10, 2005

Issued: December 10, 2004

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affai

6. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE ARRANGEMENTS

6.1. Non-Emergency N11 Dialing Service

The Company will provide translation of routing direction for direct dialed calls for N11 Non-Emergency services.

N11 Dialing Service is a three digit dialing arrangement available in specified areas for delivery of direct dialed local calls for general information, community information and referral services. N11 subscribers must comply with any FCC or State orders and rules pertaining to the provision of N11 service. The following N11 services may be available:

- 211 Human Services Organizations (e.g., United Way, health-related services)
- 311 Non-emergency city service calls
- 511 Department of Transportation/traveler information

6.1.1 Provision of Service

- A. Service is available in areas in which Insight Phone provides local service, and as facilities permit.
- B. All requests for the designation of N11 abbreviated dialing must be approved by the Kentucky Public Service Commission. The Commission will designate N11 numbers based upon requirements and/or standards established by the FCC.
- C. Calls initiated in the local calling area of the subscriber to N11 numbers will be translated and routed to the subscriber's main telephone number.
- D. If a merger of local calling areas occurs, and a N11 exists in both areas, the N11 subscriber who established the service first in time will be entitled to retain the N11 number in the new, merged, local calling area.
- E. Service may not be transferred or sold to an unaffiliated entity.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

12/19/2006 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

Effective: December 19, 2006

Issued: December 4, 2006

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affairs

6. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE ARRANGEMENTS

6.1.2 SERVICE REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

- A. Access to N11 is only available through direct dialed calls. It is not available through: 1+, Operator Assisted, Credit Card, Third Party billing, Collect Calls, Inmate Service or 101XXXX.
- B. If a subscriber fails to establish service, or decides to discontinue service, the N11 number will be recalled and the number will be considered available for reassignment. If the network has been provisioned, nonrecurring charges will not be refunded or waived.
- C. Only one 7 or 10 digit toll free number may be used as the lead number per basic local calling area. All central offices within a local calling area must be pointed to the same 7 or 10-digit local number or one 10-digit toll free number.
- D. The subscriber is responsible for obtaining all necessary permission licenses, written consents, waivers and releases and all other rights from all persons whose work, statements or performance are used in connection with the service and from all holders of copyrights, trademarks and patents used in connection with said service.
- E. The subscriber shall be liable for, and shall indemnify, protect, defend and save harmless the Company against all liability, suits, actions, claims, demands and judgments, and of all costs, expenses and counsel fees incurred on account thereof, arising out of and resulting directly or indirectly from the service or in connection with, including, but not limited to, any loss, damage, expense or liability resulting from any infringement or claim of infringement, of any patent, trademark, copyright, or resulting from any claim of liable and slander.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 12/19/2006

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

Effective: December 19, 2006

Issued: December 4, 2006

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affairs

Executive Director

KY06-006

6. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE ARRANGEMENTS

6.1.3 SERVICE REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS (CONT'D)

- F. The subscriber shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and ordinances of any local, state, federal or regulatory agency having jurisdiction over its services and its request and designation for N11 service. Subscriber shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold the Company harmless from and against any and all costs, expenses or liability resulting from any violation or failure to comply with the foregoing.
- G. The Company may take all legal and practical steps to disassociate itself from N11 subscribers providing services whose business and/or public conduct is of a type that in the Company's discretion generates unacceptable levels of complaints by end users.
- H. In no event shall the Company be liable for any losses or damages of any kind resulting from the unavailability of its equipment or facilities. The company shall not be responsible for calls that cannot be completed as a result of repair or maintenance difficulties on Company facilities.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 12/19/2006

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

Effective: December 19, 2006

Issued: <u>December 4, 2006</u>

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal Affairs.

Executive Director

KY06-006

6. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE ARRANGEMENTS

6.1.3. RATES AND CHARGES

A. Service Establishment Charge

The Service Establishment Charge is a non-recurring charge that applies to each entity subscribing to N11 Service. A Service Establishment Charge will apply per 211 code translated.

B. Translation Fee

The Translation Fee is a non-recurring charge that applies per Rate Center for all rate centers included in the subscriber's calling area.

C. Rates

Non-Recurring Charge

Service Establishment Charge

\$185.00

Translation Fee

120.00

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE 12/19/2006

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

Executive Director

Effective: December 19, 2006

Issued: December 4, 2006

Gregory Cameron, Director of Telecommunications Legal A fairs

KY06-006